
 
 

 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 
20 January 2020 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A Meeting of the Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee will be held in 
Committee Room 1, Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth, B79 7BZ on 
Tuesday, 28th January, 2020 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested to 
attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

3 Declarations of Interest  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or 
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this 
meeting. 

 
When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should 
specify the nature of such interest.  Members should leave the room if they 
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not 
have a dispensation.   
 

 

4 Update from the Chair  

 To receive an update from the Chair, including on: 
 

5 Responses to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth Committee  

 Update on responses received to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth 
Committee. 
 

6 Consideration of Matters referred to the Infrastructure Safety & Growth 
Committee from Cabinet or Council  

 (Discussion item) 
 

7 2019/20 Forward Plan  

 (Discussion item – link to Forward Plan is attached) 
 
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0&bcr=1 
 

8 PSPO Renewal Access Road to Dosthill Hall (Pages 11 - 22) 

 (Report of the Assistant Director Partnerships) 
 

9 Update on CCTV Implementation  

 To receive an update from Councillor J Chesworth and the Assistant Director, 
Neighbourhoods.  
 

10 Working Group Updates  

 To receive updates from any Working Groups 
 

11 Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 23 - 
24) 

 (Update and discussion on the Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Work 
Plan) 
 

   _________________________________________ 

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0&bcr=1


 
Access arrangements 

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can 
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
Filming of Meetings 

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast.  Please refer to the Council’s 

Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can 

be found here for further information. 

The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed.  Where 

possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front 

of the public gallery.  This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the 

public being accidentally filmed.    

If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the 

location of any cameras when selecting a seat. 

FAQs 

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page 

here 

 
 
 
To Councillors: S Goodall, A Farrell, M Bailey, R Bilcliff, P Brindley, T Clements, R Ford, 
Dr S Peaple and P Thurgood 

mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND 
GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 17th DECEMBER 2019 
 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor S Goodall (Chair), Councillors A Farrell, M Bailey, 

R Bilcliff, P Brindley, T Clements, Dr S Peaple and P Thurgood 

 
CABINET: 

 

Councillor J Oates 

 
The following officers were present: Paul Weston (Assistant Director Assets), 
Matthew Fletcher (Head of Economic Development and Regeneration) and Jo 
Hutchison (Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections Officer) 
 
 
There were no apologies.  
 
 

47 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The Minutes of the previous Infrastructure Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
held on 25th November 2019 were approved and signed as a correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor R Bilcliff and seconded by Councillor T Clements) 
 

48 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

49 UPDATE FROM THE CHAIR  
 
The Chair highlighted to the Committee that a Report on Public Space Protection 
Orders would be considered by Cabinet on 19th December 2019. 
 

50 RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & 
GROWTH COMMITTEE  
 
There were no recommendations from this Committee to cabinet which had not 
been previously reported on. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

17 December 2019 

 

 

2 
 

51 CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE 
SAFETY & GROWTH COMMITTEE FROM CABINET OR COUNCIL  
 
There were no items for this Committee’s consideration. 
 

52 2019/20 FORWARD PLAN  
 
There were no new items on the Forward Plan identified for this Committee’s 
consideration.  
 

53 WORKING GROUP UPDATES  
 
The Chair reported that he would be seeking further information to support the 
taxi working group in the new year.   
 

54 UPDATE ON FIRE SAFETY  
 
The Committee received the update from the Assistant Director, Assets on Fire 
Safety in High Rise Residential Buildings following the publication by the 
Government of its detailed set of proposals for consultation on the future of fire 
safety in high-rise residential buildings. 
 
It was reported that the key messages from this consultation were:- 
 

 Clearer responsibilities for those building or managing high-rise buildings  

 Giving a stronger voice in the system and better information for residents  

 Having greater oversight by regulators  

 Tougher enforcement when things go wrong 
 
The Assistant Director reported that the work to install sprinklers in the high rise 
buildings had been completed ahead of schedule, and residents’ satisfaction with 
the works was reported to be high. 
 
It was reported that the consultation indicated that there would be likely to be 
more pre-emptive work required to ensure there was a detailed description of the 
building and also that more individualised evacuation plans for residents in high 
rise buildings could be required, similar to those already in place in sheltered 
housing accommodation.  It was further reported that the definition of high rise 
could be extended to include any building over 11m. 
 
The Assistant Director reported that work was underway to identify the potential 
impacts on resources, including on staffing, of additional requirements.  Impacts 
in terms of additional job roles and training for different roles was expected to be 
required and some budgetary allowance was being made for this in the budget 
setting process.   However, until the Government sets out its legislative details, an 
accurate assessment was not possible.  However it was reported that it was 
expected that the legislative changes would have an impact on the 30 year 
Housing Revenue Account business plan. 
 

Page 6



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

17 December 2019 

 

 

3 
 

The Committee considered the report and asked and received clarification in the 
following areas: 

 Whether the new requirements were likely to affect non-residential building 
such as Marmion House. It was reported that the focus at the moment 
remained on residential properties, as well as properties such as schools 
and hotels. 

 That there was expected to be a phased implementation period, to 
accommodate the need for new training and qualification courses to be 
developed. 

 Consideration of buildings within the Borough which whilst they may not 
reach 11m, nor 18m, were difficult to access.  

 The need to ensure that information on vulnerable residents was 
appropriately shared. 

 
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director for his update and attendance and 
noted that the Committee would receive a further update once any new 
legislative requirements were known. 
 
The Assistant Director left the meeting. 
 

 
55 INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 

PLAN  
 
The Committee considered its Work Plan an updated it as follows: 
 

Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan 

Page 7



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

17 December 2019 

 

 

4 
 

 
 
 

 
 

56 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That members of the press and public be now excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item on the grounds that the business involves the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
  
(Moved by Councillor S Goodall and seconded by Councillor Dr S Peaple) 
 

57 FUTURE HIGH STREETS FUND UPDATE  
 
 

Work Plan 2019 - 2020 

DATE SUBJECT 

January 2020 CCTV review 

TBC Review of taxi evidence 

TBC Public Transport and taxis 

TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety) 

TBC Town Centre Growth 

TBC Events Offer (possible working group) 

March / April 2020 Review of Taxi Licensing Policy – Points 
System – 12 month review 

31 March Crime Figures for Tamworth and Community 
safety (tbc) – Annual update - Staffordshire 
Police to be invited 

When clarity on legislation  Fire Safety Update 

TBC Review of West Midlands Combined Authority 
– Green / Climate Strategy – targets and data 
for Tamworth 

Q2 2020/2021 Waste Management developments  

TBC Castle Update 

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings 

28 January 2020 

31 March 2020 

Page 8



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

17 December 2019 

 

 

5 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Growth introduced the Head of Economic 
Development and Regeneration to the Committee who provided an update on 
progress against the Future High Streets Fund project to date. 
 
The Head of Economic Development explained the process which the Council 
had followed to seek funding from the Government Future High Streets Fund, 
which had been launched in early 2019 to provide access to grants of between 
£5m and £25m to projects which would structurally transform town centres and 
meet local challenges. 
 
Tamworth’s application now forms part of the second tranche, which meant that 
the Council had been awarded revenue funding of £150,000 to develop a Green 
Book compliant business case.  A draft of this business case must be submitted 
by 15 March 2020, with the final business case submission by 30 June 2020.   
 
It was noted that an inception meeting with Government was expected in the new 
year.  A multi-disciplinary team of consultants had been appointed to deliver a 
Green Book complaint business case, which was being co-ordinated by the 
council.   
 
The Committee discussed the interactions that this process had with other 
planned work to develop town centre and tourism strategies and the need for the 
council to develop a cohesive theme across these work areas. It was noted that 
the Future High Streets Fund had a particular focus on the built environment and 
that the wider strategy work would need to be focussed appropriately. 
 
The Committee thanked the Portfolio Holder and the Head of Economic 
Development and Regeneration for their update and the report. 
 

  

 Chair  
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 28TH JANUARY 2020 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR - PARTNERSHIPS 
 
 

PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER RENEWAL  - ACCESS ROAD TO 
DOSTHILL HALL 

 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To consider renewal of the Access Road to Dosthill Hall  Public Space 
Protection Order following public consultation and support  delegation to the 
Portfolio Holder for implementation 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Scrutiny Committee   
 

1. Approve delegation to the Portfolio Holder, Regulatory and Community 
Safety for the renewal of the of the Access Road To Dosthill Hall Public 
Space Protection Order (as attached) 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Processes for the consideration of Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs), 
implemented under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, were 
approved at Cabinet on 18 June 2015.  
 
The following conditions must be met before making the order:  

 Activities carried out in a public place within the local authority’s area have a 
detrimental effect on the quality of life of those living in the locality OR 

 It is likely that activities will be carried out in a public place within the area that 
will have such an effect  

 
The effect, or likely effect of the activities:  

 Is, or is likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature OR 

 Is, or is likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable and justifies 
the restrictions imposed by the order  

 
All PSPOs can be put in place for a maximum of three year with the option to :- 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



 

 To extend for a further specified period of time on expiration if the order 
continues to meets criteria above  

 To discharge the existing order as no longer needed 
 

Access Road to Dosthill Hall PSPO 
 
The original PSPO expired on 30 November 2018 and although the signs remained 
in place, the order could not be enforced.  In order to continue with this success and 
in consultation with the Wilnecote and Trinity Neighbourhood Policing team and the 
Tamworth Chief Inspector, a request was made that the order is renewed for a 
further 3 years as effective deterrent and to allow the issue of a FPN by officers as 
necessary. 
 
Following approval at Cabinet on 19th December 2019, a period of further 
consultation was approved for a proposed renewal.   
 
In accordance with the The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 
(Publication of Public Spaces Protection Orders) Regulations 2014, the Council’s 
constitution and process agreed, the Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny 
Committee is invited to consider this order and approve delegation to the Portfolio 
Holder Regulatory and Community Safety for implementation.   
 
It is considered that the original PSPO has been successful and it would be 
concerning if there was nothing in place to address individuals who wish to engage in 
anti-social behaviour.  Police have reported that since the start of the PSPO there 
has been a significant reduction in ASB and calls to the Police at this location.  
 
Public Consultation 2020 
 
Following approval at Cabinet, the public on-line consultation began on 23rd 
December 2019 and closed on Friday 17th January 2020. 
 
The results of the consultation are attached as Appendix 1 
  
There were 91 on-line responses, with an average of support rate of 98% for the 
order to be renewed and that it has made a difference. 
 
The responses will be shared with Community Safety partners, especially with regard 
to any criminal activity, reports of nuisance vehicles or requests for additional Public 
Space Protection orders, which must meet the criteria for consideration and be 
proportionate. 
 
Further, there have been some positive comments made on social media around the 
renewal: 
 
I think if its working keep it going , will hopefully keep the area clean also as rubbish hasn’t 
been too bad round the park either well nothing like it used to be 
 
The Dosthill park wildlife group meet first Sunday each month. Litter picking is always one 
of the jobs , when we first started 10 years ago it was horrendous and took most of the 
morning but, now thanks to local support and education it’s much better. Wildlife  ie: birds. 
Small mammals. Butterfly’s etc:are thriving . 
  
This should not be up for debate enough land is disappearing under concrete as it is. 

Page 12



 
Without a doubt!!! 
 
Keep it going 
 
It clearly has worked for the past nearly 5 years so why would it be even up for debate ?? 

 
 
The updated PSPO is attached as Appendix 2 and will be displayed on the Council 
website.  The  public have six weeks from the implementation date of 1st February 
2020 to challenge this decision should they so wish at High Court.   
 
 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
All options have been considered as part of the process for the implementation of 
PSPOs. 
 
The cessation of the order will remove the power of Police and partners to effectively 
tackle the anti-social behaviour defined. 
 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
The use of Public Open Space Protection Orders requires enforcement resource and 
can be enforced by Police officers and other Council officers as designated by 
Tamworth Borough Council. 
 
The Order can be enforced by the Police and Community Wardens (when patrolling) 
and will be monitored over the next three years 
 
No further signage is required. 
 
All other recommendations will be subject to continued review by the Tamworth 
Community Safety Partnership as issues present.  
 

 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
All legal risks covered by legislation and agreed process 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
To be reviewed as necessary in respect of ongoing ASB. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
A Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO) is a measure to stop individuals or groups 
committing ASB in public places. The local authority will identify the area that is to be 
covered by the order – known as the ‘restricted area’.  
 
The PSPO can:  

 Prohibit specified things being done in the area  

 Require specified things to be done in the area  

Page 13



 
The prohibitions or requirements can be framed so that they:  

 Apply to all persons, or only persons in specified categories, or to all persons 
except those in specified categories  

 Apply at all times, or only at specified times, or at all times except those 
specified  

 Apply in all circumstances, or only in specified circumstances, or in all 
circumstances except those specified  

 
The process was outlined and agreed at Cabinet on 18 June 2015.  
 
If after consideration, areas are to be subject to a PSPO, Cabinet agreed to a 
statutory 28 day consultation (as outlined under the PSPO Guidelines 2014), the 
results of which will be discussed at Scrutiny for delegated approval to the Portfolio 
Holder for implementation 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
Jo Sands, Assistant Director - Partnerships 
 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
APPENDICES 
Appendix 1 – Survey results  
Appendix 2– Updated PSPO 
 
 
 

Page 14



PSPO Dosthill Park Survey Results 2020 

 

Page 15



 

Page 16



 

Page 17



 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



 

  

Page 19



 

 

Page 20



TAMWORTH COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER 
Section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 

 
 

1) Following representations from members of the public and in relation to evidence that has been gathered 
and reviewed, the Tamworth Community Safety Partnership (lead agency Tamworth Borough Council), 
intends to apply a Public Spaces Protection Order on the area defined below: 
 

Access Road to Dosthill Hall, Dosthill Park, Blackwood Road,Tamworth, B77 1LJ 
 

 
 

 
2) Under the terms and restrictions of the Public Spaces Protection Order the following is PROHIBITED:  

 
a) The playing of music emitting from any vehicle or by means of portable amplified device between the 

hours of 20:00 and 06:00 Monday – Sunday except with the express permission of Tamworth 
Borough Council 

b) Congregating and loitering in groups around (or in) one or more vehicles and engaging in behaviour 
which is likely to cause noise, harassment, alarm or distress between the hours of 20:00 and 06:00 
Monday-Sunday 

c) Barbeques or littering  
d) ‘Doughnutting’, racing or other vehicle nuisance 
e) The drinking of alcohol in the area defined and breach on failure to comply with a request by an 

authorised officer to cease drinking or surrender alcohol  
 

Parking of vehicles is permitted at all times by legitimate users of the play facility, Dorcas Centre, 
private residents and their visitors subject to compliance with conditions at  2(a)  above 

 
3) If any local resident or member of the public is found to be committing the acts that are prohibited above, the 

following sanctions may be applied: 

 The issue of a £100 Fixed Penalty Notice payable within 28 days and/or 

 Prosecution for breach of an Order and  a maximum penalty fine not exceeding level 3 on the 
standard scale (currently £1,000) 

 

4) It is the intention that this Public Spaces Protection Order will renew from 1st February 2020 and will 
expire on 31st January 2023. (Previous Order 1st December 2015 – 30th November 2018) 

 
5) If any interested person desires to question the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council had 

no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not be complied with in relation to this Order, 
he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date on which this order is made. 

 
Signed…………………………………………………………………... Date……………………………….…………. 
 
Councillor S Doyle 
Portfolio Holder for Regulatory and Community Safety            

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan 

 
 
 

 

Work Plan 2019 - 2020 

DATE SUBJECT 

January 2020 CCTV review 

January 2020 PSPO review 

TBC Review of taxi evidence 

TBC Public Transport and taxis 

TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety) 

TBC Town Centre Growth 

TBC Events Offer (possible working group) 

March / April 2020 Review of Taxi Licensing Policy – Points 
System – 12 month review 

31 March Crime Figures for Tamworth and Community 
safety (tbc) – Annual update - Staffordshire 
Police to be invited 

When clarity on legislation  Fire Safety Update 

TBC Review of West Midlands Combined Authority 
– Green / Climate Strategy – targets and data 
for Tamworth 

Q2 2020/2021 Waste Management developments  

TBC Castle Update 

September 2020 (tbc) Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
interim update 

September 2020 (tbc) Renewal of PSPO Dog Control 

September 2020 (tbc) Renewal of PSPO Alcohol Restriction 

TBC Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
review of draft Strategy 

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings 

28 January 2020 

31 March 2020 

Page 23

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	8 PSPO Renewal Access Road to Dosthill Hall
	Appendix 1 - On-line Survey results
	Appendix 2 PSPO Renewal Access Road to Dosthill Hall

	11 Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan

